
 
MORIN BUILDING 

8570 EXECUTIVE PARK AVENUE  
FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 22031 

 
 

March 23, 2020 
 
To:  All Prospective Offerors 
 
Issued by: Elizabeth B. Dooley, CPPO, CPPB, Procurement Lead Buyer 
 
Subject: Addendum 1, RFP 20-011, Customer Self-Service Portal 
 
The purpose of this addendum is to address questions submitted in response to the subject RFP. 
 
Section I: Updates to the RFP 
 
Deadline for Submitting Proposals: Thursday, April 16, 2020 no later than 2:00 PM EST. 
 
Proposals to Be Delivered to: Procurement Department Fairfax Water  

          8570 Executive Park Avenue  
          Fairfax, Virginia 22031 

 
Submitting Proposals Electronically: Temporarily, Offerors may submit proposals electronically, in 
response to this RFP, via SharePoint, Drop-box or other similar methods (no thumb drives) to 
edooley@fairfaxwater.org. We will also still require paper copies.  
 
Section II: Questions & Answers 
 
Questions  
  

1. RFP Background section 1.2.3 – Are the "One time Bank Payments without logging on" 
supported by SEW or Speedpay or both vendors integrated together?   

a. Supported by both and integrated together, processed nightly with batch  
   

2. RFP Background section 1.2.3 – Are the "Credit/Debit Card payments " supported by SEW 
or Speedpay or both vendors integrated together?   

a. Supported by both and integrated together  
  

3. Will the current vendor supporting the existing production Customer Portal be competing in the 
bid for the enhancements? Why or why not?  

a. As with all vendors, the incumbent has been notified of the RFP and invited to 
participate. Whether or not they respond is a business decision for them. 



  
4. Does FW assume that any bid which proposes a different platform from the current portal will 
require all current production features/functionalities to be developed in addition to the requested 
enhancements?  Noting that this would alter scope, time, and effort.  

a. FW is open to different platforms. Evaluation will depend on how solution meets 
requirements as outlined in the RFP requirements spreadsheet. All currently 
production functionality is required.   

  
5. What is your preferred technology stack (if any, such as Java, .NET, MEAN, etc…)  

a. We do not have a preferred technology stack. As long as it works with our 
current environment and future S/4 HANA  

  
6. Currently, there is a mobile-enabled customer portal and mobile app on the PlayStore, does the 
response need to include enhancements to the existing app on the appstores?  

a. The proposals should include a mobile app for ISO and Android.  
  

7. The last bullet of the enhancements list (“Intelligent processing, artificial intelligence and 
machine learning”) outlines a desire to implement “enhanced” customer experience by leveraging 
newer technologies; does FW currently have a big data framework such as Hadoop as a foundation 
to build some of these technologies on top of?  

a. FW does not have a big data framework such as Hadoop.   
  

8. In addition to the technical and functional specifications, how do you measure customer 
satisfaction today with your current system? How does the latest measurement compare to your 
goal?  

a. We look at adoption rates and track customer interactions.   
b. We have room to improve in the customer experience area.  

  
9. What are your goals or hopes for improvement in the areas of customer satisfaction, customer 
assistance programs, reducing truck rolls, leak detection and alerting, or other areas such as artificial 
intelligence, machine learning, or related topics.  

a. The population of Fairfax County is generally highly educated and tech-savvy.  As the 
water purveyor for this community, Fairfax Water prefers a solution that offers the potential 
for multiple channels of self-service as well as clean interface that smoothly moves the 
customer through their interaction.  If artificial intelligence and machine learning can reliably 
assist in improving the customer experience, then that is desirable.  As to reducing truck rolls, 
leak detection, and alerting, we look to your expertise in providing a solution that promotes 
industry best practices in those areas.   
b. Our goal is always to improve customer satisfaction and service.  

  
10. What technical lessons were learned from the five years with SEW?   

a. Need detailed service level agreements in place before implementation.  
   

11. Will SEW cooperate with the migration of usernames and passwords to a new vendor's 
authentication system? or will all end customers be required to re-register?  

a. SEW is a very respected company in the industry. FW can only assume they 
will cooperate, but proposals should include both options.   

  



12. The AppStore reviews for your current app imply that service levels have not been met. What 
service level agreement is required?   

b. Desired SLA’s should be covered during the negotiation. Please 
include your proposed SLAs.   

  
13. What 3rd party interfaces are utilized for Credit/Debit card payments and critical electronic bill 
presentations under contract for 3 years and what integration technologies are they currently 
utilizing. Is Fairfax open to replacement solutions?  

a. Today we use the ACI Worldwide solution. FW is open to change if the selected vendor 
already has a contract in place with a payment processor.  
b. FW uses DataMatx for bill presentment.  

  
14. In addition to 3rd party payments and billing, are there any other 3rd party integration 
requirements?  

a. Our portal integrates with ACI Worldwide for credit/debit card and DataMatx for bill 
presentment.  It also integrates with SAP.  
 

15. What functionality from 3rd party billing and payment will interact with the self-service portal?  
a. Payments, bills, payment history, billing history, account balance display and contact 
information.  
 

16. Under value add functionality – Pool Forms is listed, what does this refer to?   
Please see https://www.fairfaxwater.org/rules-and-regulations  
“Swimming Pool Adjustment”  
Customers subject to the Peak Use Charge due to water used in the operation of a 
swimming pool will be entitled to an adjustment, provided that the Customer completes 
the filling of the swimming pool prior to May 15 of each year and the adjustment 
request is received by the Authority prior to June 1 of each year:  

 Customers with a Service Connection installed for the sole purpose of operating 
a swimming pool will be entitled to a winter quarter base consumption equal to 
the capacity of the swimming pool.  

 Customers that do not have a separate Service Connection for a swimming pool 
will be entitled to an adjustment to the Customer's first summer quarterly bill 
for any Peak Use consumption up to the amount of water used in the filling of 
the swimming pool.  

17. Are there administration functions required via mobile?   
a. We currently do not have this functionality; we are open to suggestions.  

  
18. How many FW employees would need to access the system? How many administrators would 
need access to the system?  

a. We have 40 employees with 3 admins.  
  

19. What visibility do call center agents and third-party agents need into the self-service portal?  
a. We have the capability to see analytics and see what the customer sees. (mirror image)  

  
20. Are there two separate applications used for desktop versus mobile today?  

a. Yes.  



  
21. What is the S/4 upgrade timeline? Is there an estimated go live date?  

a. TBD, 2021/2022.  
  

22. Does Fairfax Water require a secure cloud (i.e. gov cloud) environment for this application?  
a. Secured, but does not need to be Gov Cloud (We do not have a requirement for 
customer to reside in the US).  

  
23. What SAP modules will be required to be exposed to the Customer Self Service portal?  

a. SAP CCS and parts of SAP FI-CA.  
 
24. Has FW enhanced any of the standard SAP MCF oData services?  

a. Our current portal vendor has done this.  
  

25. Will Syntax be hosting this solution?   
a. No.   

  
26. Is there an IVR in place at Fairfax Water today? If so, how is this integrated to Self Service? Is 
there a plan to integrate IVR to the new Self Service portal?  

a. Yes, there is an IVR today; it is not integrated to self-service portal.  
b. Definitely would like it to integrate.  
 

27. What 3rd party energy apps would Fairfax Water be looking to integrate to the Self-
Service Portal?  

a. None at this time. Maybe GIS in the future.  
  

28. What is the current identity provider / user store?  
a. Idaptive with SAP.  

  
29. Is this user store / idp still available after moving away from the current provider or is it just 
available in conjunction with the current solution?  

a. No  
  

30. Shall passwords be migrated as well? If so which hash is used in the user store?  
a. Most likely not, TBD.  

 
31. What was the current authentication / authorization mechanism? Authorization in the IS-U 
system through users and linked contract accounts or connection via technical user and 
authorization provided by some sort of check on the platform itself?  

a. Authentication of users are done via the Vendor Application. No user data is stored in 
SAP other than their contract account and data related to it.   
b. Data is retrieved from SAP via a technical user that has the necessarily authorization 
to retrieve the data. Technical user is restricted to only access data that is required by the 
portal.  

  
32. Is that idp connected to other solutions as well?  

a. Attachment H shows all connections currently supported.   
  



33. What is the targeted customer group for the first wave?  
a. Current registered customers on the SEW portal.  

  
34. Is there the plan to have a step by step migration (keeping the old service for some customer 
groups)?  

a. Offeror to provide proposed migration plan.  
  

35. What is the go-live date for the new portal?  
a. TBD. Based on vendor proposals and subsequent negotiations.  

  
36. Within the Solution Requirements Workbook provided, there are several line items that directly 
correlate to questions in the RFP. Would FW prefer us answer each line item in addition to the RFP 
or can vendors have a statement that refers to the written response in the RFP? (i.e. – Vendor 
Question 13 Please provide the product roadmap for the next 24 months in a separate attachment.  
NOTE:  by not providing a product roadmap, your response may be considered non-
compliant. VS Item 2 Question 1: Describe the Offeror’s long-term development strategy and plans 
to ensure that the Solution proposed, and the firm remains viable in the marketplace, including 
future direction of the technology, roadmap and products proposed.)  

a. Please complete the spreadsheet at a minimum. Provide any additional information you 
deem necessary to complete your proposal.  

  
37. What is the percentage of customer portal adoption rate with the current provider? What is the 
expected increase in the adoption rate per year?   

a. We have a 46% adoption rate. Unknown future adoption rate.  
  

38. Can Fairfax Water share with the bidders the term of the contract?   
a. The terms will be negotiated with the Offeror’s whose solution is deemed to be in the 

best interest of FW.  
  

39. Does Fairfax Water have a preference of resource location? On-site/offshore?   
a. We prefer on-site for meetings, project requirement gathering and pre and post go-
live support.  

  
40. If Fairfax Water is looking to change payment provider vendor, can you share with the bidders 
the following information please:   

a. 3 consecutive months of processing statements from current provider (or alternatively, 
a detailed breakdown of average transaction size and payment volume by card type and 
credit vs. debit).    

i.Not available at this time. Requested from vendor.  
b. We are aware that Fairfax Water charge a convenience fee to customers. Would you like 
to continue this practice or make change.   

i.Yes, and lower fee would be nice.  
c. Adoption rate of both credit/debit cards and ACH among your customer base.   

i.Not available.   
d. Volume of recurring payments vs. one-time payments on credit/debit cards.   

i.Not available at this time. 
  



41. What improvements would you like to see over your current processor? More visibility on 
the payment process analytics from the vendor. Can Fairfax Water provide a summary of the 
payment files for the last 12 months?   

a. As we have international customers, this would be a GDPR violation.  
  

42. Is it allowed to include a cover letter as part of the proposal in addition to the executive 
summary?   

a. Yes, that’s fine.   
  

43. Regarding the submission of Attachment I (Solution Requirements Workbook). Is it necessary to 
submit a paper copy of the attachment with the proposal or can it be submitted in electronic format 
only?   

a. Paper and electronic would be ideal.   
  

44. Where can the bidders find the page limit for each response item?   
a. There is no page limit.  

  
45. Can the electronic copy of the proposal be submitted in a thumb drive with the sealed envelope 
containing the physical proposal copies instead of submitting it via SharePoint?   

a. Fairfax Water does not allow use of thumb drives – this is a security violation. Please see 
information in Section I above on this Addendum.  

  
46. Are there any specific guidelines (questions or information to be included) for the following 
sections: IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AND METHODOLOGY and PROJECT ORGANIZATION AND 
STAFFING?   

a. Please share how you would implement, and provide staff resumes for the project.  
  

47. Regarding Attachment G (Pricing), tab 4 includes a column for profit %. Normally, profit 
information is confidential and not disclosed to clients. Would Fairfax Water consider marking this 
column as OPTIONAL for bidders?   

a. No. We are requesting this information as part of the proposal and it will be maintained.   

48. Are there any other systems that the Customer Portal would need to integrate with beyond 
Attachment H?   

a. Not at this time.  
  

49. Does Fairfax Water desire to implement a mobile application for all or parts of the functionality 
included in this RFP at the same time as the web implementation? If yes, please elaborate.   

a. Yes. 
  

50. Requirement: "Will application have FW label functionality (such as Autopay vs. Recurring for 
example)?" Is this referring to if Fairfax Water business users can change labels themselves?   

a. Yes, this is preferred for Fairfax Water portal administrators.  
  

51. What languages are necessary to be supported?   
a. English required -  Spanish and Korean would be nice to have.  

  



52. Requirement: "Will the site provide ability for periodic reminders to registered event users the 
status/updates of the event and additional similar/related event registration?" Can you please 
clarify what is meant by 'event'? Our belief is that an event would be, for example, if a customer 
wished to receive a text alert when their invoice is greater than $400. Alternatively, is Fairfax Water 
wishing to send adhoc messaging or schedule, for example, webinars?   

a. Use announcements to broadcast messages to our customer portal. 
users. Announcements can display in an announcement banner or an announcement 
widget instance.   For example, “xxx part of the portal is down, and we are aware of the 
issue”.  Or promote Fairfax Water booth at the Celebrate Fairfax Festival.  

b. Please provide options of what your product offers.  

53. Regarding the submission of the Solution Requirements Workbook and Pricing Workbook. Can 
the vendor submit them in electronic format only? Or is it necessary to provide physical copies of 
the forms with the proposal submission?   

a. Please see Section I above in this Addendum 1.  
  

54. Regarding the electronic submission of the Solution Requirements Workbook and Pricing 
Workbook. Can the vendor submit both forms in Excel format as a separate file from the main PDF 
written response? If yes, the vendor will submit 3 files: Technical proposal (PDF), Solution 
Requirements Workbook (Excel), and Pricing Workbook (Excel).   

a. Yes, so long as it is electronic, and the file is not altered by the Offeror. 
  

55. Regarding the Financial Stability Statement, can the vendor provide the 2018 audited financial 
statements (by an independent auditor) as a proof of financial stability instead of the suggested 
letter?   

a. FW will accept the latest Audited Financial Statements. FW reserves to the right to 
request additional information as it deems appropriate. 

56. The information required in the RFP is extensive. Can FW consider providing a 2-week extension 
to the vendors?   

a. FW has provided an extension, see Section I above in this Addendum 1. 

57. Regarding Solutions Requirements verbiage for “Inbound correspondence,” can you please 
elaborate on what this entails and/or how this process is expected to function in conjunction with 
the portal?   

a. Currently, we have options for customers to submit online questions/concerns and 
service requests as well as provide attachments via the Portal. We have the ability to 
respond back to the customer by utilizing the Admin Portal. The customer receives an 
email to indicate a reply has been received and are directed to log in to their Portal 
account to view additional details. All inbound & outbound communication is carried on 
in real time. We are open to any suggestions related to additional forms of inbound 
correspondence which can be managed through the Portal (i.e.: chat).  

58. Regarding the Solutions Requirements verbiage for “InBound and Outbound Interaction” 
specifically “Outbound Automated Phone interactions” - can you please provide information on how 
you expect this requirement to function? Typically, we see this requirement for our Call Center 
solution as opposed to our customer facing portal solution.   

a. Today the SEW admin portal provides a central console for managing a consolidated view 
of all inbound and outbound interactions across all channels such as, web, e-



mail. The CSR (customer service representative) is able to carry on a interactive 
interaction with the customer and reply to their inquiries.     

59. Regarding Solutions Requirements verbiage for “Transfer a call to IVR (Outbound automated 
phone interactions),” can you please elaborate on what this entails and/or how this process is 
expected to function in conjunction with the portal? Is the portal expected to handle or direct 
customer calls?   

a. FW is open to phone integration with the self-service portal. No, the portal is not 
expected to handle or direct customer calls.  

60. Is Fairfax Water expecting to receive optional and/or value-added products and services? If that 
is the case, how and where (in which proposal submittal elements) should the bidder include that 
information?   

a. Feel free to add to the value-added area section of the solution requirements 
spreadsheet.  

61. Does the bidder have to use SAP MCF for the implementation? Is it a must?   
a. It is not a must; FW is open to options.  

62. Regarding the Solutions Requirements verbiage for “Additional Self Services” specifically 
“Describe your solution's capability to support contactor / trade ally portals.” Bidder assumes that 
this portal would be for 3rd parties to access, and possibly change, customer information on either 
behalf of the customer or on behalf of Fairfax Water. Can you please confirm?   

a. We are looking for functionality to allow management companies to 
manage their property accounts.  
 

No other changes have been made to the RFP.



 

RFP 20-011 – Customer Self-Service Portal  
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDUM # 1 

 
 
I certify that the information contained in the proposal submitted on behalf of the below named 
firm incorporates any and all changes to the original specification.  I further certify by my signature 
below, that I am fully authorized to acknowledge receipt of the above addendum and also bind the 
below named firm to the terms, conditions and specifications of the RFP and any changes thereto 
made by this addendum. 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY:  

 
 
 
 
FOR: __________________________________    ____________________ 

Company Name       Date 
 
 
 

__________________________________  
Signature of Authorized Agent    

 
 

 
__________________________________   

  Printed/typed name 
 
 

_________________________________ 
  Title 
 


